December 27, 2024

PUBLIC ACCESS OPINION 24-016
(Request for Review 2024 PAC 83122)

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT:
Basis for Withholding Letter from
Current and Former Employees of One
Public Body Asking Oversight Agency
to Hold Vote of No Confidence

Ms. Donna M. Dowd

Chicago Metro Counsel

Police Benevolent & Protective Association - Labor Committee
1616 West Pershing Road

Chicago, Illinois 60609

Mr. Charles Isaacs

Assistant Director

Community Commission for Public Safety and Accountability
City of Chicago

2 North LaSalle Street, Suite 1600

Chicago, Illinois 60602

Dear Ms. Dowd and Mr. Isaacs:

This binding opinion is issued pursuant to section 9.5(f) of the Freedom of
Information Act (FOIA) (5 ILCS 140/9.5(f) (West 2023 Supp.)). For the reasons discussed
below, this office concludes that the City of Chicago (City) Community Commission for Public
Safety and Accountability (Commission) violated the requirements of FOIA by improperly
denying a FOIA request submitted by Donna M. Dowd.

BACKGROUND

On September 5, 2024, Ms. Dowd, as the Chicago Metro Counsel for the Police
Benevolent & Protective Association - Labor Committee, submitted a FOIA request to the
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(d) Records in the possession of any public body created in the
course of administrative enforcement proceedings, and any law
enforcement or correctional agency for law enforcement purposes,
but only to the extent that disclosure would:

* %k ok

(iv)  unavoidably disclose the identity of a confidential
source, confidential information furnished only by the
confidential source, or persons who file complaints with or
provide information to administrative, investigative, law
enforcement, or penal agencies; [or]

* % kK

(vi)  endanger the life or physical safety of law
enforcement personnel or any other person|.]

Section 7(1)(d)(iv) of FOIA generally allows police departments and other law
enforcement agencies to protect the anonymity of persons who lodge complaints or otherwise
provide them with information. See Chicago Alliance for Neighborhood Safety v. City of
Chicago, 348 11l. App. 3d 188, 200-01 (2004) (concluding that police department did not
improperly redact names and addresses of individuals who attended beat meetings, which
provided an opportunity for police and members of the community to meet and exchange
information).

The Commission claimed that section 7(1)(d)(iv) applies to the letter by citing
Kelly v. Village of Kenilworth, 2019 IL App (1st) 170780, and arguing that the case "established
that public bodies other than law enforcement agencies can assert an exemption under Section
7(1)(d) of FOIA when the record is closely related to on-going law enforcement efforts."3® The
Commission asserted that it "has records closely related to law enforcement[,]" and argued that
"[t]he review of the performance of the COPA Chief and the consideration of complaints by
current and former employees are inextricably intertwined with law enforcement by the City of
Chicago."3! The Commission argued that "[t]he City itself is a law enforcement agency, and the

3%Letter from Charles Isaacs, Assistant Director, Community Commission for Public Safety and
Accountability, City of Chicago, to Joshua M. Jones, Deputy Bureau Chief, Public Access Bureau, Office of the
Illinois Attorney General (October 18, 2024), at 10.

3Letter from Charles Isaacs, Assistant Director, Community Commission for Public Safety and
Accountability, City of Chicago, to Joshua M. Jones, Deputy Bureau Chief, Public Access Bureau, Office of the
[llinois Attorney General (October 18, 2024), at 10.







































